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29th October 2017 

Chairman’s Letter 

Dear Fellow Shareholders 

The 2017 Financial Year and subsequent period have been tumultuous for Search Party Group Limited 
(“SP1”) and its subsidiaries as we sought to develop and reconstruct the Group and its product offerings 
and build a recruitment marketplace which delivered service and value for customers and ultimately for 
shareholders. 

The year started full of promise with the issue of our Prospectus and the subsequent listing on ASX via a 
reverse takeover of Applabs Technologies Limited. This transaction was designed to provide a sound 
platform for the business to continue to develop the SP1 products and strategies. We continued the 
development in Australia, UK and North America with the view to earning new revenue from a growing 
customer base. 

Early in 2017, when your Directors’ concerns about the slow and inconsistent progress in key metrics 
heightened, we initiated a strategic review of the entire operation with the benefit of additional and 
enhanced market information. Marketplace expert and major shareholder Josh Rogers was appointed to 
lead this review, We informed all shareholders in detail of the results of the review in our ASX 
Announcement dated 18 July 2017 which in summary concluded that it was necessary to quickly and 
significantly cut operating expenses and to refocus the company’s product offerings and related 
development efforts 

This review and the current development status of our products also led your Directors to conclude that 
the group should seek de-listing from ASX. The analysis supporting these conclusions is set out in detail 
in our ASX Announcement dated 3 October 2017. In summary, we believe that the development status of 
our product offerings continues to provide material uncertainty as to its commercial viability, and that the 
costs involved with remaining listed at this stage materially outweigh the benefits derived. 

Accordingly, as we announced on 3 October 2017, we intend to seek shareholder approval for a de-listing 
from ASX at the AGM to be held on 29 November 2017. This will require approval by a majority of SP1 
shareholders. A notice of meeting and further explanation on the de-listing plan will be sent to you shortly.  

Your Directors are very grateful for the support and patience that you have shown in the last years, and 
should you choose to remain a shareholder of the unlisted company (assuming the de-listing is supported 
by the SP1 shareholders), your Directors will continue to work hard to restore value to your shares. 

Please note that I intend to vote in favour of removing the Company from the ASX official list (17.6%) as 
does our CEO Josh Rogers (17.1%) and that we both intend to retain our current shareholdings post    
de-listing.  

Yours sincerely. 

Trevor Loewensohn 
Chairman Search Party Group Limited 
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The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as 
the 'Group') consisting of Search Party Group Ltd (referred to hereafter as the 'Company' or 'Parent Entity') and the entities 
it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2017. 
  
Directors 
The following persons were directors of Search Party Group Ltd during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of 
this report, unless otherwise stated: 
  
Trevor Loewensohn - Chairman  Appointed 2 August 2016 
Joshua Rogers - Chief Executive Officer  Appointed 14 March 2017 
Nicholas Gundry  Appointed 25 November 2016 
Benjamin Hutt - Managing Director  Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 14 March 2017 
Paul Bird  Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 28 February 2017 
Charles Thomas  Resigned 28 February 2017 
Patrick Glovac  Resigned 2 August 2016 
Rocco Tassone  Resigned 2 August 2016 
  
Principal activities 
During the financial year the principal continuing activities of the Group consisted of operating an online recruitment 
marketplace, allowing employers to search for and connect with candidates through recruiters. 
  
The Group also owns JobAdvisor, an employer review site, empowering business to grow their employer brand while 
helping job seekers find companies with the best cultural fit. 
  
Dividends 
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
  
Review of operations 
The loss for the Group after providing for income tax amounted to $15,358,145 (30 June 2016: $7,545,991). 
  
Strategic review 
In March 2017, the Company announced the commencement of a strategic review and the appointment of major 
shareholder and experienced online entrepreneur, Josh Rogers, as interim CEO to lead the process. Concurrent to the 
review process, a number of significant actions were undertaken to markedly reduce monthly operating expenses to a level 
below $200,000 per month on a normalised basis. 
  
The strategic review and related report has since been substantially completed and considered by the Board and the 
Company having now considered various options is pursuing development of a more focused product. 
 
Key Findings of the Strategic Review 
An outline of the key failings that led to the Company’s current position was set out in an announcement dated 18 July 
2017 and is summarised below under the following headings: 
  
●  Value Proposition 
●  Execution Focus and Sequencing 
●  Inadequate Product Development Focus 
●  Marketplace Evolution Principles 
●  Centralised CV Database 
●  Misdirected Market Spend 
●  JobAdvisor 
●  Strategic and Operational Partnerships 
  
Value Proposition 
Online value propositions are widely recognised as successful when solving clearly identified problems by impacting their 
root cause. Search Party’s clarity as to the underlying causes of the recruitment industry’s problems was unclear resulting 
in an ineffective value proposition. 
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Execution Focus and Sequencing 
Launching online platforms requires extraordinarily tight focus to gain user traction. Search Party tackled too many 
problems simultaneously and in some cases too soon which combined with an unclear value proposition meant the 
Company lost required focus. 
  
Inadequate Product Development Focus 
The company commenced an aggressive and expensive customer scaling process without understanding properly that its 
platform was not developed to a stage needed to provide the high quality outcomes needed to secure highly engaged and 
sustainable users. 
  
Marketplace Evolution Principles 
Simplistically, online marketplaces require discipline in developing their value proposition and scalable product offering, 
targeting a narrow, highly defined customer base at launch for whom the platform provides extraordinary outcomes and 
value. These early adopters become product evangelists, creating new users via recommendation, underpinning marketing 
efforts and initiating network effects that lead to lower sustainable customer acquisition costs. As stated previously, Search 
Party sought to chase growth prematurely in its product development cycle, when its product offering was not fully ready. 
  
Centralised CV Database 
Search Party’s CV database was considered a key asset of its operating model. Not properly foreseen however was CV’s 
accessed through intermediaries create limitations which are exacerbated with scale. Search functionality requires quality 
CV data with value determined greatly by its currency. Undated CVs collected over a period of time by numerous 
recruitment firms make it difficult to properly assess candidate availability. Whilst employees were delivered successfully to 
employers, user experience was of a ‘bait and switch’ model, tempting employers with ideal candidates but with recruiters 
almost always ‘re-selling’ alternatives to the initially chosen candidates due to their lack of availability or interest. 
  
Misdirected Marketing Spend  
Marketing spend, whilst delivering employer user growth and seemingly ‘top of funnel income’ was generating employer 
users who did not meet the high quality, highly engaged target criteria referred to above, instead being mostly non-repeat, 
high cost users. 
  
JobAdvisor 
JobAdvisor’s platform as an employment branding site should become increasingly important to employers seeking to 
differentiate themselves in a crowded market. However, the Company acquired JobAdvisor at a time in its cycle when it did 
not have the capacity to develop it properly and the Board now believes this value is most likely to be best extracted from 
potential joint venture and licensing arrangements. 
  
Strategic and Operational Partnerships 
Finally, as always foreshadowed, we identified other companies who were undertaking parts of the hiring process that 
Search Party had sought to address. These companies exist in target jurisdictions and/or operating business models that 
could benefit from our developed technology or whose product execution solved parts of the hiring process better than the 
Search Party solution was and with whom we could partner. This will be an ongoing priority for the future. 
  
Actions and Way Forward 
  
Cost Reductions 
As previously mentioned and disclosed, a substantial cost reduction program has been implemented. We have achieved 
the reduction of normalised monthly expenses to sub $200,000 per month with the intention of reducing this further, 
particularly as trailing expenses run off. The Company has incurred significant expenses in this process, including costs 
such as redundancies and existing contracts being finalised or run-off. 
  
Other potential new strategies 
The review process included a comprehensive discovery and design process of other HR related product options providing 
a cost-effective, timely and achievable pathway to market fully utilising existing platform technology. This process was 
directed by Josh Rogers, has led to a number of potentially viable options with initial user testing supporting 
commercialisation. The Board is considering how best to resource or alternatively benefit from such potential opportunities. 
  
Conclusion 
The Board acknowledges that the performance of the Company has been disappointing for all shareholders and is grateful 
for their patience. Our recent refocusing is essential to ensure the learnings from the strategic review are implemented, 
providing the company the best opportunity to restore shareholder value. 
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Significant changes in the state of affairs 
On 14 October 2016 the Company changed its registered office and principal place of business to New South Wales from 
Western Australia. 
  
In February 2017, the Company raised $3,853,565 by way of a free bonus option to all shareholders on a 1 option for every 
9.68 shares held basis (with an aggregate face value of $4 million pre costs) at an exercise price is $0.10 per share. The 
offer was fully underwritten by an entity associated with the Chairman, Trevor Loewensohn and supported by pre-
commitments to take up pro-rata allocation from two of the largest shareholders being those entities associated with the 
Chairman Trevor Loewensohn and marketplace expert and at that stage, consultant to the Company Joshua Rogers. 
  
New Interim CEO Strategic Review and cost reductions 
 As mentioned above, Josh Rogers was appointed as interim CEO on 14 March 2017 to lead a detailed strategic review. 
The results of the review were announced to the market on 18 July 2017 and have been summarised earlier in this report. 
  
As outlined in this announcement the Company is conducting further research into a refined product and concept which 
utilises our IP and technology and learning’s to date. We have identified a number of potentially viable options which we 
believe have user appeal and can be commercialised efficiently. We are in the final stages of evaluating and considering 
how best to resource or alternatively benefit from any strategy once finalised and will of course advise the market as soon 
as any decision has been made. 
  
In the meantime all operating business units in UK, and Australia and most recently Canada have been phased down and 
a decision has also been made to close down the previous operating website. 
  
There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year. 
  
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
In August 2017, the Company commenced the process of liquidating two of its wholly-owned UK subsidiaries being The 
Search Party Ltd and Search Party Services Ltd. 
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2017 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect 
the Group's operations, the results of those operations, or the Group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
  
Likely developments and expected results of operations 
Information on likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of operations have not been 
included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group. 
  
Environmental regulation 
The Group is not subject to any significant environmental regulation under Australian Commonwealth or State law. 
  
Information on directors 
Name:  Trevor Loewensohn 
Title:  Non-Executive Chairman (Appointed 2 August 2016) 
Qualifications:  B Comm, CA, FSIA 
Experience and expertise:  Trevor is the Founder and Managing Director of Alceon Group, a specialist advisory, 

investment and capital solutions partnership with offices nationally. Trevor has over 
30 years of investment banking experience, mostly for leading global investment 
banks including Vice Chairman - UBS and Head of Investment Banking/joint CEO at 
JP Morgan. Prior to founding Alceon, Trevor was the Global Head of Capital Markets 
at Babcock & Brown. 

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Crowe Horwath Limited (June 2013 to December 2014) 
Special responsibilities:  Chairman of the Board 
Interests in shares:  75,905,102 held indirectly 
Interests in options:  None 
Interests in rights:  200,000 
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Name:  Josh Rogers 
Title:  Chief Executive Officer (Appointed 14 March 2017) 
Experience and expertise:  Josh has been involved in online and telecommunication start-ups for 20 years acting 

as founder, CEO or executive director. His product portfolio includes 
telecommunications, fintech, e-commerce, B2C and B2B platforms with an emphasis 
now on online platform and marketplace orientated businesses. 

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  None 
Special responsibilities:  None 
Interests in shares:  72,810,959 held indirectly 
Interests in options:  None 
Interests in rights:  None 
  
Name:  Nicholas ('Nick') Gundry 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Qualifications:  BA, M.Comm 
Experience and expertise:  Nick has 17+ years’ experience working in technology in APAC and global roles and 

is currently Head of Emerging Market Development - SE Asia for Microsoft while also 
responsible for strategic recommendations in partnerships, co-investment and 
acquisitions of tech start ups across the region.  
 
Previously Nick was Head of Marketing - Skype during Skype's spin-off from eBay, 
eventually being acquired by Microsoft in their largest ever acquisition at the time. He 
has also worked for Yahoo and his start up experience includes co-founding 
Travelmob (acquired by Nasdaq listed HomeAway in 2013 and now Expedia Inc.) 

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  None 
Special responsibilities:  None 
Interests in shares:  None 
Interests in options:  None 
Interests in rights:  800,000 
  
'Other current directorships' quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships of all 
other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
  
'Former directorships (last 3 years)' quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed entities only and 
excludes directorships of all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
  
Information on directors who resigned during the year 
Name:  Ben Hutt 
Title:  Former CEO and Managing Director (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 14 

March 2017) 
Qualifications:  MBA, BSc Hons Psyc 
Experience and expertise:  Ben Hutt has over 15 years experience in management consulting with top-tier firms 

such as PwC Consulting. Prior to Search Party, Ben worked in a range of roles in his 
five years at Macquarie Group, the last two of which were spent building an 
international team focused on delivering improved cost efficiency across the group. 
Ben is a perennial business problem solver, a serial entrepreneur and an expert in 
managing and executing complex projects that improve productivity. 

  
Name:  Paul Bird 
Title:  Former Non-Executive Director (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 28 February 

2017) 
Qualifications:  B.Ec, LLB,  Dip.L.Prac 
Experience and expertise:  Paul is a co-founder of The Search Party and is also the founder and current CEO of 

SecureCo and a co-founder and director of Homestar Finance. Prior to choosing the 
path of an entrepreneur, he worked in senior strategic roles at PBL Media and 
Diageo. Paul holds Bachelors degrees in Economics and Law from the University of 
Sydney. 
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Name:  Charles Thomas 
Title:  Former Non-Executive Director (Resigned 28 February 2017) 
Qualifications:  B.Comm Majoring in Corporate Finance 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Thomas worked as an Investment Adviser from 2009-2014 for Bell Potter 

Securities Ltd focussing on High Net worth clients & Corporate Advisory. Prior to this 
Mr Thomas worked for State One Stockbroking for a period of 3 years, advising and 
funding  numerous ASX  listed companies. Mr Thomas also has Corporate Advisory 
experience with GTT Ventures Pty Ltd and has held Directorships of a number ASX 
listed entities. 

  
Name:  Patrick Glovac 
Title:  Former Non-Executive Director (Resigned 2 August 2016) 
Qualifications:  B.Comm Majoring in Finance, Banking and Management 
Experience and expertise:  In 2013 Mr Glovac co-founded GTT Ventures Pty Ltd, a boutique corporate advisory 

firm, specialising in the resource and technology sector. GTT has funded numerous 
listed and private companies since its inception across multiple markets including 
Australia, USA and the United Kingdom. Previously he worked as an investment 
advisor for Bell Potter Securities Limited, focusing on high net-worth clients and 
corporate advisory services. Mr Glovac has held Directorships of a number ASX listed 
entities. 

  
Name:  Rocco Tassone 
Title:  Former Non-Executive Director (Resigned 2 August 2016) 
Qualifications:  B.Bus with a double major in Finance and Economics, Post Graduate Diploma in 

Applied Finance 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Tassone worked with Bell Potter Securities Limited where for a period of 8 years 

he advised across domestic and international Institutional Sales, High Net Worth 
individuals and Corporate Advisory. During this time he has advised and funded many 
ASX listed companies from early stage seed capital through to IPO and mergers and 
acquisitions. Mr Tassone has experience as the Managing Director and Non-
Executive Director of a number ASX listed entities. 

  
Company secretary 
Patrick Raper is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Patrick has 20+ years of CFO and Company 
Secretary experience managing all aspects of commercial administration, planning, management and reporting, ASIC, 
ASX and tax compliance and corporate governance duties. He has led mergers and acquisitions, broker and investor 
liaison, due diligence and transaction finalisation, capital management, and managed ASX IPOs of multinationals CMA and 
Ecosave. 
  
During the financial year, Simone Lander was the company secretary. Simone has in excess of 20+ years' company 
secretarial and compliance experience having worked in the investment banking, private equity, stockbroking, property and 
mining industries. 
  
Patrick was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary on 18 July 2017. 
  

Search Party Group Limited 2017 Annual Report Page 8

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Search Party Group Ltd   
(Formerly known as Applabs Technologies Ltd)   
Directors' report   
30 June 2017   
 

  

  
8 

Meetings of directors 
The number of meetings of the Company's Board of Directors ('the Board') held during the year ended 30 June 2017, and 
the number of meetings attended by each director were: 
  
  Full Board
  Attended Held 
    
Trevor Loewensohn (Appointed 2 August 2016)  13   13  
Josh Rogers (Appointed 14 March 2017)  4   4  
Nicholas Gundry (Appointed 25 November 2016)  7   7  
Benjamin Hutt (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 14 March 2017)  9   9  
Paul Bird (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 28 February 2017)  7   7  
Charles Thomas (Resigned 28 February 2017)  7   7  
Patrick Glovac (Resigned 2 August 2016)  -   - 
Rocco Tassone (Resigned 2 August 2016)  -   - 
  
Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office. 
  
The business and meetings during the year of the nomination and remuneration committee and audit and risk committee 
were conducted as part of the Full Board meetings. 
  
Remuneration report (audited) 
The remuneration report details the key management personnel remuneration arrangements for the Group, in accordance 
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations. 
  
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors. 
  
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings: 
●  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
●  Details of remuneration 
●  Service agreements 
●  Share-based compensation 
●  Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
  
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
Subject to the recent downsizing of the executive team and the refocusing and implementation of the learnings from the 
strategic review, the objective of the Group's executive reward framework should be to ensure reward for performance is 
competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework should align executive reward with the achievement 
of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders. The Board of Directors ('the Board') ensures that 
executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward governance practices: 
●  competitiveness and reasonableness 
●  acceptability to shareholders 
●  performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation 
●  transparency 
  
The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for its directors and executives. The 
performance of the Group depends on the quality of its directors and executives. The remuneration philosophy is to attract, 
motivate and retain high performance and high quality personnel. 
  
The reward framework is designed to align executive reward to shareholders' interests. The Board have considered that it 
should seek to enhance shareholders' interests by: 
●  having economic profit as a core component of plan design 
●  focusing on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price, and delivering 

constant or increasing return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value 
●  attracting and retaining high calibre executives 
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Additionally, the reward framework should seek to enhance executives' interests by: 
●  rewarding capability and experience 
●  reflecting competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth 
●  providing a clear structure for earning rewards 
  
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive director 
remuneration is separate. 
  
Non-executive directors remuneration 
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands and responsibilities of their role. Non-executive 
directors' fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee may, from time to time, receive advice from independent remuneration consultants to ensure 
non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market. The Chairman's fees are 
determined independently to the fees of other non-executive directors based on comparative roles in the external market. 
The Chairman is not present at any discussions relating to the determination of his own remuneration. Non-executive 
directors do not receive share options or other incentives. 
  
ASX listing rules require the aggregate non-executive directors' remuneration be determined periodically by a general 
meeting. The most recent determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 24 November 2016, where the 
shareholders approved a maximum annual aggregate remuneration of $300,000. 
  
Executive remuneration 
The Group aims to reward executives based on their position and responsibility with a level and mix of remuneration which 
has both fixed and variable components. 
  
The executive remuneration and reward framework has four components: 
●  base pay and non-monetary benefits 
●  short-term performance incentives 
●  share-based payments 
●  other remuneration such as superannuation and long service leave 
  
The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration. 
  
Fixed remuneration, consisting of base salary, superannuation and non-monetary benefits, are reviewed annually by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on individual and business unit performance, the overall performance of 
the Group and comparable market remunerations. 
  
Executives may receive their fixed remuneration in the form of cash or other fringe benefits (for example motor vehicle 
benefits) where it does not create any additional costs to the Group and provides additional value to the executive. 
  
The short-term incentives ('STI') program is designed to align the targets of the business units with the performance 
hurdles of executives. STI payments are granted to executives based on specific annual targets and key performance 
indicators ('KPI's') being achieved. KPI's include profit contribution, customer satisfaction, leadership contribution and 
product management. At the date of this report there are no STI programs in place. KPI's previously in place have not been 
achieved. 
  
The long-term incentives ('LTI') include long service leave and share-based payments. Shares were awarded to executives 
over a period of three years based on long-term incentive measures. These include increase in shareholders value relative 
to the entire market and the increase compared to the Group's direct competitors. 
 
The Board will again review the long-term equity-linked performance incentives for staff and executives during the year 
ended June 2018. 
  
The Group has various option plans currently in place: 
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Employee share option plan  A share option plan has been established by the Group and approved by shareholders at 
a general meeting, whereby the Group may, at the discretion of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, grant options over ordinary shares in the Company to certain 
staff or consultants of the Group. The options are issued for nil consideration and are 
granted in accordance with performance guidelines established by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. 

Performance rights  A Performance Rights Plan has been established by the Group. Performance Rights are 
issued for nil consideration and are granted in accordance with performance guidelines for 
the for the Group established by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

  
The Company has issued employee share option plan ('ESOP') options as employee incentives pursuant to the terms of 
the Company's ESOP. 
  
ESOP options were issued for nil consideration with an exercise price of $0.10 per option. ESOP option are exercisable at 
$0.10 each and are subject to the following vesting conditions: 
●  1/3 of the options vesting 12 months after the relisting date of ALA, and 
●  1/24 of the options vesting at the end of months 13 to 36 post relisting of ALA. 
  
ESOP options expire 5 years after the grant date. A number of employees who were made redundant in the last six months 
have retained their rights under the ESOP. 
  
The Company has developed a performance rights plan ('PRP') which incorporates performance conditions and was 
effective from 18 August 2016. 
  
The PRP provides for awards of performance rights to senior management, vesting in 1/6 tranches over a five year period. 
The vesting is based on the following performance conditions: 
  
Revenue Tranche (subject to a 20 day volume weighted 
average price ('VWAP') being above $0.10), net monthly 
revenue of the Group; 

 

Share Price Tranche: 
   
$0.5 million  $0.3333 
$1.0 million  $0.4080 
$1.5 million  $0.6666 
  
If the target is satisfied the performance rights will vest, but may lapse if an employee ceases employment with the 
Company. A number of employees who were made redundant in the last six months have retained their rights under the 
PRP. 
  
Use of remuneration consultants 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2017, the Group did not engage remuneration consultants to review its existing 
remuneration policies. 
  
Voting and comments made at the Company's 2016 Annual General Meeting ('AGM') 
At the 2016 AGM, 99.67% of the votes received supported the adoption of the remuneration report for the year ended 30 
June 2017. The Company did not receive any specific feedback at the AGM regarding its remuneration practices. 
  
Details of remuneration 
 
Amounts of remuneration 
Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of the Group are set out in the following tables. 
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The key management personnel of the Group, at the date of this report, consisted of the following directors of Search Party 
Group Ltd: 
●  Trevor Loewensohn - Chairman (Appointed 2 August 2016) 
●  Josh Rogers – Interim Chief Executive Officer (Appointed 14 March 2017) 
●  Nicholas Gundry (Appointed 25 November 2016) 
●  Benjamin Hutt - Managing Director (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 14 March 2017) 
●  Paul Bird (Appointed 2 August 2016 and resigned 28 February 2017) 
●  Charles Thomas (Resigned 28 February 2017) 
●  Patrick Glovac (Resigned 2 August 2016) 
●  Rocco Tassone (Resigned 2 August 2016) 
  
In the financial year to 30 June 2017 the following persons were also key management personnel: 
●  Stuart Paul Gatenby - Chief Technology Officer (Resigned 14 June 2017) 
●  Jason Shepherd - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned 8 May 2017) 
  

 

 

Short-term benefits

Post-
employment 

benefits

 
Long-term 

benefits

 Share-
based 

payments

 

        
  Cash salary Cash Non- Super- Leave Equity- 
  and fees bonus monetary annuation benefits settled Total
2017  $ $ $ $ $ $ $
        
Non-Executive Directors:               
T Loewensohn*  13,258  -  -  1,259  -  527   15,044 
J Rogers*  26,583  -  -  -  -  -  26,583 
B Hutt**  236,790  -  -  24,673  -  14,260   275,723 
P Bird**  39,275  -  -  3,731  -  1,054   44,060 
N Gundry*  29,167  -  -  2,771  -  2,109   34,047 
C Thomas**  51,540  -  -  4,896  -  -  56,436 
P Glovac**  61,813  -  -  5,872  -  -  67,685 
R Tassone**  9,103  -  -  865  -  -  9,968 
               
Other Key Management 
Personnel: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S Gatenby**  281,651  -  -  24,077  -  5,704   311,432 
J Shepherd**  209,509  -  -  17,098  -  6,845   233,452 
  958,689  -  -  85,242  -  30,499   1,074,430 
  
*  Remuneration disclosed is for the date of appointment to 30 June 2017. 
**  Remuneration disclosed is from 1 July (or date of appointment) to date of resignation. 
  

 

 

Short-term benefits

Post-
employment 

benefits

 
Long-term 

benefits

 Share-
based 

payments

 

        
  Cash salary Cash Non- Super- Leave Equity- 
  and fees bonus monetary annuation benefits settled Total
2016  $ $ $ $ $ $ $
        
Non-Executive Directors:               
C Thomas  99,277  -  -  9,431  -  -  108,708 
P Glovac  100,000  -  -  9,500  -  97,200   206,700 
R Tassone  99,277  -  -  9,431  -  -  108,708 
  298,554  -  -  28,362  -  97,200   424,116 
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The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows: 
  
  Fixed remuneration At risk - STI At risk - LTI
Name  2017 2016  2017 2016 2017 2016 
         
Non-Executive Directors:             
T Loewensohn  96%   -  -  -  4%   - 
B Hutt  100%   -  -  -  -  - 
P Bird  94%   -  -  -  6%   - 
N Gundry  97%   -  -  -  3%   - 
C Thomas  93%   100%   -  -  7%   - 
P Glovac  100%   53%   -  -  -  47%  
R Tassone  100%   100%   -  -  -  - 
J Rogers  100%   -  -  -  -  - 
             
Other Key Management 
Personnel: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S Gatenby  98%   -  -  -  2%   - 
J Shepherd  97%   -  -  -  3%   - 
  
Service agreements 
There are no formalised service agreements in place for Executive key management personnel. 
  
Share-based compensation 
 
Issue of shares 
There were no shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation during the year 
ended 30 June 2017. 
  
Options 
There were no options over ordinary shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of 
compensation that were outstanding as at 30 June 2017. 
  
There were no options over ordinary shares granted to or vested by directors and other key management personnel as part 
of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2017. 
  
Performance rights 
The terms and conditions of each grant of performance rights over ordinary shares affecting remuneration of directors and 
other key management personnel in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows: 
  
  Number of       Fair value
  rights       per right
Name  granted   Grant date  Expiry date  at grant date
         
T Loewensohn  200,000     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.041  
B Hutt  5,409,224     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.041  
P Bird  400,000     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.005  
N Gundry  800,000     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.041  
S Gatenby  2,163,689     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.003  
J Shepherd  2,596,427     18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.001  
  
Performance rights granted carry no dividend or voting rights. 
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Values of performance rights over ordinary shares granted, vested and lapsed for directors and other key management 
personnel as part of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2017 are set out below: 
  
  Value of Value of  Value of Remuneration
  rights rights  rights consisting of
  granted vested  lapsed rights
  during the during the  during the for the
  year year  year year
Name  $ $  $ %
      
T Loewensohn  527   -  -  4%  
B Hutt  14,260   -  -  6%  
P Bird  1,054   -  -  3%  
N Gundry  2,109   -  -  7%  
S Gatenby  5,704   -  -  2%  
J Shepherd  6,845   -  -  3%  
  
Details of performance rights over ordinary shares granted, vested and lapsed for directors and other key management 
personnel as part of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2017 are set out below: 
  
      Number of Value of Value of Number of Value of
      rights rights rights rights rights
Name  Grant date    granted granted vested lapsed lapsed
       $ $  $
          
T Loewensohn  18/08/2016    200,000   527  -  -  - 
B Hutt  18/08/2016    5,409,224   14,260  -  -  - 
P Bird  18/08/2016    400,000   1,054  -  -  - 
N Gundry  18/08/2016    800,000   2,109  -  -  - 
S Gatenby  18/08/2016    2,163,689   5,704  -  -  - 
J Shepherd  18/08/2016    2,596,427   6,845  -  -  - 
  
Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
 
Shareholding 
The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and other members of key 
management personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at  Received     Balance at 
  the start of  as part of    Disposals/  the end of 
  the year remuneration Additions  other the year
Ordinary shares           
T Loewensohn  -  -  75,905,102   -  75,905,102  
B Hutt  -  -  23,500,999   -  23,500,999  
P Bird  -  -  -  -  - 
N Gundry  -  -  -  -  - 
C Thomas  -  -  -  -  - 
P Glovac  -  -  -  -  - 
R Tassone  -  -  -  -  - 
J Rogers  -  -  72,810,859   -  72,810,859  
S Gatenby  -  -  18,800,878   -  18,800,878  
J Shepherd  -  -  2,281,318   -  2,281,318  
  -  -  193,299,156   -  193,299,156  
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Performance rights holding 
The number of performance rights over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and 
other members of key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at     Expired/  Balance at 
  the start of     forfeited/  the end of 
  the year Granted Vested  other* the year
Performance rights over ordinary shares           
T Loewensohn  -  200,000   -  -  200,000  
B Hutt  -  5,409,224   -  (5,409,224) -  
P Bird  -  400,000   -  (400,000) -  
N Gundry  -  800,000   -  -  800,000  
S Gatenby  -  2,163,689   -  -  2,163,689  
J Shepherd  -  2,596,427   -  -  2,596,427  
  -  11,569,340   -  (5,809,224) 5,760,116  
  
*  Expired/forfeited/other relates to no longer a key management personnel not necessarily an expiry, forfeiture or other 

transaction 
  
Other transactions with key management personnel and their related parties 
Sovereign Gold Company Limited, a company associated with Directors Patrick Glovac, Rocco Tassone and Charles 
Thomas entered into a sublease for the offices of the Company for $3,000 per month plus outgoings until 29 November 
2017. 
  
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited. 
  
 
Shares under option 
Unissued ordinary shares of Search Party Group Ltd under option at the date of this report are as follows: 
  
    Exercise  Number 
Grant date  Expiry date  price under option 
      
18/08/2016  18/08/2018  $0.15   30,000,000  
18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.10   4,954,463  
18/08/2016  10/04/2022  $1.08   91,918  
       
      35,046,381  

  
No person entitled to exercise the options had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of 
the Company or of any other body corporate. 
  
Shares under performance rights 
Unissued ordinary shares of Search Party Group Ltd under performance rights at the date of this report are as follows: 
  
    Exercise  Number 
Grant date  Expiry date  price under rights 
      
18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.00  10,126,880  
  
No person entitled to exercise the performance rights had or has any right by virtue of the performance right to participate 
in any share issue of the Company or of any other body corporate. 
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Shares issued on the exercise of options 
The following ordinary shares of Search Party Group Ltd were issued during the year ended 30 June 2017 and up to the 
date of this report on the exercise of options granted: 
  
  Exercise  Number of 
Date options granted  price shares issued 
    
24 September 2016  $0.10   10,470,128  
27 November 2016  $0.10   28,065,514  
     
    38,535,642  

  
Shares issued on the exercise of performance rights 
There were no ordinary shares of Search Party Group Ltd issued on the exercise of performance rights during the year 
ended 30 June 2017 and up to the date of this report. 
  
Indemnity and insurance of officers 
The Company has indemnified the directors and executives of the Company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a 
director or executive, for which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith. 
  
During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors and executives of 
the Company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits 
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium. 
  
Indemnity and insurance of auditor 
The Company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the 
Company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor. 
  
During the financial year, the Company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the 
Company or any related entity. 
  
Proceedings on behalf of the Company 
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on 
behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings. 
  
Non-audit services 
Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor 
are outlined in note 20 to the financial statements. 
  
The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the financial year, by the auditor (or by another 
person or firm on the auditor's behalf), is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by 
the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements do not compromise the 
external auditor's independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons: 
●  all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity 

of the auditor; and 
●  none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, including 
reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the Company, 
acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards. 

  
Officers of the Company who are former partners of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 
There are no officers of the Company who are former partners of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd. 
  
Auditor's independence declaration 
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out 
immediately after this directors' report. 
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Auditor 
BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 
2001. 
  
On behalf of the directors 
  

  
___________________________ 
Trevor Loewensohn 
Chairman 
  
30 August 2017 
Sydney 
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY DEAN JUST TO THE DIRECTORS OF SEARCH PARTY GROUP 

LIMITED 

As lead auditor of Search Party Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2017, I declare that, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 

relation to the audit; and 

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

This declaration is in respect of Search Party Group Limited and the entities it controlled during the 

period. 

 

 

Dean Just 

Director 

 

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 

Perth, 30 August 2017 
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  Note  2017  2016 
    $  $ 
       

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes 

18 

Revenue       
Marketplace revenue    1,002,877   822,640  
Cost of marketplace sales    (772,650) (659,917) 
Net marketplace revenue    230,227   162,723  
CRM and Job Advisor revenue    6,561   33,184  
       
Net revenue from continuing operations    236,788   195,907  
  
Other income  6  1,427,114   1,425,560  
  
Expenses       
Employee benefits expense    (4,715,618) (4,479,250) 
Directors fees    (124,906) -  
Depreciation expense  7  (31,770) (21,763) 
Consultants fees    (1,040,038) (406,302) 
Advertising and marketing expenses    (1,016,280) (929,931) 
I.T. hosting and servicing fees    (701,523) (725,728) 
Professional fees    (443,830) (238,665) 
Rent, rates and insurance    (660,602) (395,078) 
Listing expense  25  (2,241,585) -  
Impairment on share investments  7  (185,027) -  
Share-based payments  30  (4,396,442) (1,007,246) 
Other expenses    (1,477,362) (904,815) 
Finance costs  7  12,936   (58,680) 
  
Loss before income tax expense    (15,358,145) (7,545,991) 
  
Income tax expense  8  -   -  
  
Loss after income tax expense for the year attributable to the owners of 
Search Party Group Ltd 

 
 

 
(15,358,145)

 
(7,545,991) 

  
Other comprehensive income       
       
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss       
Foreign currency translation    141,868   18,216  
  
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    141,868   18,216  
  
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the owners of Search 
Party Group Ltd 

 
 

 
(15,216,277)

 
(7,527,775) 

  
    Cents  Cents 
       
Basic earnings per share  29  (3.96) (2.07) 
Diluted earnings per share  29  (3.96) (2.07) 
  
Refer to note 2 for details on comparative information. 
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  Note  2017  2016 
    $  $ 
       

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
19 

Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents  9  993,015   393,018  
Trade and other receivables  10  153,186   1,611,352  
Other  11  1,285,641   105,432  
Total current assets    2,431,842   2,109,802  
       
Non-current assets       
Property, plant and equipment  12  93,016   32,260  
Security deposits    164,887   82,526  
Total non-current assets    257,903   114,786  
       
Total assets    2,689,745   2,224,588  
  
Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables  13  413,760   763,806  
Employee benefits    40,585   156,350  
Deferred lease incentive    7,000   -  
Accrued expenses    389,062   213,514  
Total current liabilities    850,407   1,133,670  
       
Non-current liabilities       
Deferred lease incentive    22,167   -  
Other    3,676   -  
Total non-current liabilities    25,843   -  
       
Total liabilities    876,250   1,133,670  
  
Net assets    1,813,495   1,090,918  

  
Equity       
Contributed capital  14  30,365,055   17,822,643  
Option reserve  15  5,035,144   1,638,702  
Foreign currency translation reserve  16  100,713   (41,155) 
Accumulated losses    (33,687,417) (18,329,272) 
       
Total equity    1,813,495   1,090,918  

  
Refer to note 2 for details on comparative information. 
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The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
20 

 

 

Contributed 

 

Option 

 Foreign 
currency 

translation 

 

Accumulated 

 

Total equity   capital  reserve  reserve  losses  
  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
Balance at 1 July 2015  12,033,568   654,177   (59,371)  (10,783,281) 1,845,093  
           
Loss after income tax expense for the year  -  -  -  (7,545,991) (7,545,991)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
18,216  

 
- 

 
18,216  

           
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  -  -  18,216   (7,545,991) (7,527,775)
           
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 
(note 14) 

 
5,789,075  

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
5,789,075  

Share-based payments (note 30)  -  984,525   -  -  984,525  
           
Balance at 30 June 2016  17,822,643   1,638,702   (41,155)  (18,329,272) 1,090,918  

  
Refer to note 2 for details on comparative information. 
  

 

 

Contributed 

 

Option 

 Foreign 
currency 

translation 

 

Accumulated 

 

Total equity   capital  reserve  reserve  losses  
  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
Balance at 1 July 2016  17,822,643   1,638,702   (41,155)  (18,329,272) 1,090,918  
           
Loss after income tax expense for the year  -  -  -  (15,358,145) (15,358,145)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
141,868  

 
- 

 
141,868  

           
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  -  -  141,868   (15,358,145) (15,216,277)
           
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 
(note 14) 

 
12,542,412  

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
12,542,412  

Share-based payments (note 30)  -  3,396,442   -  -  3,396,442  
           
Balance at 30 June 2017  30,365,055   5,035,144   100,713   (33,687,417) 1,813,495  
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Note 2017 2016 
$ $ 

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
21 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 1,418,217 1,067,638 
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (11,012,888) (9,058,818) 

(9,594,671) (7,991,180) 
Interest received 19,760 6,776 
Research and development grant 1,323,705 1,195,646 
Interest and other finance costs paid 12,936 - 

Net cash used in operating activities 28 (8,238,270) (6,788,758) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Net cash acquired on acquisition of Applabs Technologies Ltd 25 1,617,378 - 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 12 (70,672) (21,391) 
Payments for security deposits (82,361) (8,619) 
Proceeds from disposal of investments 316,687 - 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 9,602 - 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 1,790,634 (30,010) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from issue of shares 7,241,909 7,731,242 
Share issue transaction costs (194,276) (591,595) 

Net cash from financing activities 7,047,633 7,139,647 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 599,997 320,879 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 393,018 72,139 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 9 993,015 393,018 

Refer to note 2 for details on comparative information. 
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Note 1. General information 
  
The financial statements cover Search Party Group Ltd ('Company' or 'parent entity') as a Group consisting of Search Party 
Group Ltd and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ('Group'). The financial statements are presented in 
Australian dollars, which is Search Party Group Ltd's functional and presentation currency. 
  
Search Party Group Ltd is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered 
office and principal place of business is: 
  
74 Campbell Street   
Surry Hills NSW 2010   
  
A description of the nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are included in the directors' report, which is 
not part of the financial statements. 
  
The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of directors, on 30 August 2017. The 
directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements. 
  
  
Note 2. Capital reorganisation and comparative information 
  
On 17 August 2016, Applabs Technologies Ltd ('Applabs') (now known as Search Party Group Ltd) acquired 100% of the 
share capital of The Search Party Ltd ('Search Party'). Applabs issued the consideration of shares of 289,528,822 to the 
original shareholders of Search Party. The issue of shares resulted in Search Party original shareholders holding the 
majority shares in Applabs after the transaction. This transaction did not meet the definition of a business combination in 
AASB 3 ‘Business Combinations’ as the activities of Applabs as at the date of  acquisition did not represent a 'business' (as 
defined by AASB 3). The transaction has therefore been accounted for in the financial statements by reference to the 
accounting requirements of AASB 2 ‘Share-based payment’ and AASB 3, as a deemed issue of shares which is, in effect, 
a share-based payment transaction whereby Search Party has acquired the net assets of Applabs. 
  
The consolidated financial statements represent a continuation of the financial statements of Search Party. 
  
The following principles and guidance on the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements in a reverse 
acquisition set out in AASB 3 have been applied: 
●  fair value adjustments arising at acquisition were made to Applabs assets and liabilities, not those of Search Party; 
●  the cost of the acquisition, and amount recognised as issued capital to affect the transaction, is based on the value of 

the notional amount of shares that Search Party would have needed to issue shareholders of Applabs to acquire the 
same shareholding percentage in Applabs at the acquisition date; 

●  retained earnings and other equity balances in the consolidated financial statements at acquisition date are those of 
Search Party; 

●  the results for the year ended 30 June 2017 comprise the consolidated results for the entire financial year of Search 
Party together with the results of Applabs from 17 August 2016 to 30 June 2017; and 

●  the comparative results for the year ended 30 June 2016 represents the consolidated results of Search Party only. 
  
  
Note 3. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The Group has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of these 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of 
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
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Note 3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

  
23 

Going concern 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 the Group recorded a loss of $15,358,145 (2016: $7,545,991) and had net cash outflows 
from operating activities of $8,238,270 (2016: $6,788,758). 
  
The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent on securing additional funding through raising of debt 
or equity to continue to fund its development activities. 
  
These conditions indicate a material uncertainty that may cast a significant doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a 
going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of 
business. 
 
The directors have reviewed the Group’s financial position and are of the opinion that there are sufficient funds to meet the 
entity’s working capital requirements and as at the date of this report. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern, which contemplates the 
continuity of normal business activity, realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business for 
the following reasons: 
●  The Group has sufficient cash resources to fund its requirements currently; 
●  The Group expects to receive additional funds via receipt of research and development grants; and 
●  The directors expect the Group to be successful in securing additional funds through debt or equity issues, when and 

if required. 
  
Should the entity not be able to continue as a going concern, it may be required to realise its assets and discharge its 
liabilities other than in the ordinary course of business, and at amounts that differ from those stated in the financial 
statements and that the financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of 
recorded asset amounts or liabilities that might be necessary should the entity not continue as a going concern. 
  
Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as 
appropriate for for-profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB'). 
  
Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, the 
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
investment properties, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and derivative financial instruments. 
  
Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in note 4. 
  
Parent entity information 
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the Group only. 
Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 26. 
  
Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Search Party Group Ltd  as 
at 30 June 2017 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. 
  
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 
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Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the Group are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group. 

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, 
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration 
transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity 
attributable to the parent. 

Where the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The Group 
recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain 
or loss in profit or loss. 

Segment reporting 
Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on the same 
basis as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM'). The CODM is responsible for the 
allocation of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance. 

Foreign currency translation 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Search Party Group Ltd's functional and presentation 
currency. 

Foreign currency transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at financial year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Foreign operations 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates at the 
reporting date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the average 
exchange rates, which approximate the rates at the dates of the transactions, for the period. All resulting foreign exchange 
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income through the foreign currency reserve in equity. 

The foreign currency reserve is recognised in profit or loss when the foreign operation or net investment is disposed of. 

Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Rendering of services 
Rendering of services revenue from marketplace placement fees is recognised by reference to the date of placement. 

Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest 
rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 

Research and development grants and export market development grants 
Research and development grants and export market development grants are recognised at their fair value where there is 
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received and the entity will comply with all the attached conditions. 
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Income tax 
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to be applied when 
the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, 
except for: 
● When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profits; or

● When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and 
the timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred 
tax assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for 
the carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable 
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously. 

Search Party Group Ltd (the 'head entity') and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax 
consolidated group under the tax consolidation regime. The head entity and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group 
continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The tax consolidated group has applied the 'separate 
taxpayer within group' approach in determining the appropriate amount of taxes to allocate to members of the tax 
consolidated group. 

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) 
and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from each subsidiary in the tax 
consolidated group. 

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts 
receivable from or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group. The tax funding arrangement ensures that the 
intercompany charge equals the current tax liability or benefit of each tax consolidated group member, resulting in neither a 
contribution by the head entity to the subsidiaries nor a distribution by the subsidiaries to the head entity. 

Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the 
Group's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 months 
after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle; it is held 
primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities 
are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 14 days. 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written 
off by reducing the carrying amount directly. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is raised when there is 
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the 
trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows 
relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

Investments and other financial assets 
Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the 
initial measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are subsequently measured at 
either amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based on the purpose of 
the acquisition and subsequent reclassification to other categories is restricted. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have 
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; a 
breach of contract such as default or delinquency in payments; the lender granting to a borrower concessions due to 
economic or legal reasons that the lender would not otherwise do; it becomes probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset; or observable 
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows. 

The amount of the impairment allowance for loans and receivables carried at amortised cost is the difference between the 
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest 
rate. If there is a reversal of impairment, the reversal cannot exceed the amortised cost that would have been recognised 
had the impairment not been made and is reversed to profit or loss. 

Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment 
(excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 

Leasehold improvements  5 years 
Fixtures and fittings  5 years 
Computer equipment  3 to 4 years 
Office equipment  3 to 20 years 
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The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the 
Group. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. 
  
Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and 
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 
  
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all the 
risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of leased assets, and operating leases, under which the lessor effectively 
retains substantially all such risks and benefits. 
  
Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased assets, or if lower, 
the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the 
lease liability and the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
  
Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's 
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease 
term. 
  
Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to 
form a cash-generating unit. 
  
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year and 
which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  
Employee benefits 
  
Short-term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be 
settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. 
  
Other long-term employee benefits 
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures 
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate 
bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
  
Defined contribution superannuation expense 
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
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Share-based payments 
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees. 
  
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares, that are provided to employees in exchange for 
the rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of services, where the amount of 
cash is determined by reference to the share price. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined 
using either the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the 
option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the 
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do 
not determine whether the Group receives the services that entitle the employees to receive payment. No account is taken 
of any other vesting conditions. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions are recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the 
vesting period. The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the 
best estimate of the number of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount 
recognised in profit or loss for the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already 
recognised in previous periods. 
  
The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying either the 
Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was 
granted. The cumulative charge to profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows: 
●  during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the

expired portion of the vesting period. 
●  from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the 

reporting date. 
  
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to 
settle the liability. 
  
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore any awards subject to market conditions 
are considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are 
satisfied. 
  
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. 
An additional expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair 
value of the share-based compensation benefit as at the date of modification. 
  
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the Group or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is treated as a 
cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the Group or employee and is not satisfied during the vesting 
period, any remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the award is forfeited. 
  
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining 
expense is recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and 
new award is treated as if they were a modification. 
  
Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the 
fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the 
principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
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Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its 
highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
  
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and 
transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. 
  
For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either 
not available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge 
and reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an 
analysis is undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, 
where applicable, with external sources of data. 
  
Contributed equity 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
  
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, 
from the proceeds. 
  
Earnings per share 
  
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Search Party Group Ltd, excluding 
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year. 
  
Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account 
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the 
weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. 
  
Reverse acquisition accounting for earnings per share 
The weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year ended 30 June 2017 is based on the weighted average 
number of shares of TSP Limited that are outstanding from the beginning of the period to the date of the acquisition that 
the number of shares is multiplied by the exchange ratio established in the acquisition and added to the actual number of 
shares of TSP Group Limited outstanding in the period following the acquisition. 
The 2016 comparative weighted average number of shares is based on the legal subsidiary's historical weighted average 
number of shares multiplied by the exchange ratio. 
  
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense. 
  
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of 
financial position. 
  
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing 
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows. 
  
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority. 
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New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2017. The Group's 
assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations, most relevant to the Group, 
are set out below. 
  
AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all 
previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement'. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall 
be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial instrument assets 
are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable election on 
initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive 
income ('OCI'). For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the 
entity's own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge 
accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of 
the entity. New impairment requirements will use an 'expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognise an allowance. 
Impairment will be measured under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased 
significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces additional 
new disclosures. An initial assessment suggests that this will not have a material impact on the Group's financial assets 
and liabilities. The Group will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018. 
  
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard provides a 
single standard for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict 
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either written, verbal or 
implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the contract; determine the transaction 
price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk; allocation of the transaction price to the separate 
performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service, or estimation 
approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied. 
Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted to revenue. For goods, the performance 
obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of the goods. For services, the performance obligation is 
satisfied when the service has been provided, typically for promises to transfer services to customers. For performance 
obligations satisfied over time, an entity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue 
should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be presented in an entity's 
statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship 
between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required 
to enable users to understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgements made in applying the guidance to 
those contracts; and any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer. An initial 
assessment suggests that this will not have a material impact on the Group's significant revenue streams. The Group will 
adopt this standard from 1 July 2018. 
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AASB 16 Leases 
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The standard replaces AASB 
117 'Leases' and for lessees will eliminate the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Subject to exceptions, 
a 'right-of-use' asset will be capitalised in the statement of financial position, measured at the present value of the 
unavoidable future lease payments to be made over the lease term. The exceptions relate to short-term leases of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and small office furniture) where an 
accounting policy choice exists whereby either a 'right-of-use' asset is recognised or lease payments are expensed to profit 
or loss as incurred. A liability corresponding to the capitalised lease will also be recognised, adjusted for lease 
prepayments, lease incentives received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any future restoration, removal or 
dismantling costs. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a depreciation charge for the 
leased asset (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liability (included in finance 
costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under AASB 16 will be higher when 
compared to lease expenses under AASB 117. However EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortisation) results will be improved as the operating expense is replaced by interest expense and depreciation in profit 
or loss under AASB 16. For classification within the statement of cash flows, the lease payments will be separated into 
both a principal (financing activities) and interest (either operating or financing activities) component. For lessor accounting, 
the standard does not substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases. An initial assessment suggests that the main 
impact of the adoption of the new standard is that the operating leases of 12 months or longer will be recognised on the 
balance sheet. The Group will adopt this standard from 1 July 2019. 
  
  
Note 4. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates 
and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, 
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will 
seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next 
financial year are discussed below. 
  
Share-based payment transactions 
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity 
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using either the Binomial or Black-
Scholes model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The accounting 
estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact profit or loss and equity. When establishing 
the valuation of the revenue tranche of the performance rights, management set the hurdles high and assessed the 
probability of reaching the revenue hurdles within the life of the option. 
  
Income tax 
The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement is required in 
determining the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary 
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on the Group's current understanding of the tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the carrying amounts, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in 
which such determination is made. 
  
Reverse Accounting Acquisition 
On 17 August 2016, Applabs Technologies Ltd ('Applabs') (now known as Search Party Group Ltd) acquired 100% of the 
share capital of The Search Party Ltd ('Search'). Applabs issued the consideration of shares of 289,528,822 to the original 
shareholders of Search. The issue of shares resulted in Search original shareholders holding the majority shares in 
Applabs after the transaction. This transaction did not meet the definition of a business combination in AASB 3 ‘Business 
Combinations’ as the activities of Applabs as at the date of acquisition did not represent a 'business' (as defined by AASB 
3). The transaction has therefore been accounted for in the financial statements by reference to the accounting 
requirements of AASB 2 ‘Share-based payment’ and AASB 3, as a deemed issue of shares which is, in effect, a share-
based payment transaction whereby Search has acquired the net assets of Applabs. 
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Note 5. Operating segments 

Identification of reportable operating segments 
The Group is organised into one operating segment, being the operation of an online recruitment marketplace. This is 
based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors (who are identified as the Chief 
Operating Decision Makers ('CODM')) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources. 

As a result, the operating segment information is as disclosed in the statements and notes to the financial statements 
throughout the report. 

Geographical information 

Revenue 
Geographical non-current 

assets 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

$ $ $ $ 

Australia 409,103 216,367 210,034 66,143 
Canada 181,831 106,343 5,880 2,493 
United Kingdom 418,504 533,114 41,989 46,150 

1,009,438 855,824 257,903 114,786 

Note 6. Other income 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9,602 - 
Interest income 19,760 6,776 
Export Market Development grant ('EMDG'), Research and Development Grant ('R&D') and 
Payroll Tax rebate ('PRT') 1,356,981 1,411,554 
Other income 40,771 7,230 

Other income 1,427,114 1,425,560 
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Note 7. Expenses 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses: 

Cost of sales 
Cost of sales 772,650 659,917 

Depreciation 
Plant and equipment (note 12) 28,437 21,763 

Amortisation 
Intangibles 3,333 - 

Total depreciation and amortisation 31,770 21,763 

Impairment on share investments 
Property Connect Holdings Limited 48,000 - 
Fanpics LLC 51,507 - 
XTV Networks Ltd 85,520 - 

Total impairment 185,027 - 

Finance costs 
Interest and finance charges paid/payable (12,936) 6,653 

Net foreign exchange loss 
Net foreign exchange loss 59,849 108,459 

Rental expense relating to operating leases 
Minimum lease payments 552,504 381,724 

Superannuation expense 
Defined contribution superannuation expense 282,506 349,319 

Note 8. Income tax expense 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense and tax at the statutory rate 
Loss before income tax expense (15,358,145) (7,545,991) 

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 30% (4,607,444) (2,263,797) 

Current year tax losses not recognised 4,607,444 2,263,797 

Income tax expense - - 

As at 30 June 2017, the Company has $2,198,916 of unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to unused prior year tax 
losses. No deferred tax assets have been recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of these losses. 
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Note 9. Current assets - cash and cash equivalents 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Cash at bank 993,015 393,018 

Note 10. Current assets - trade and other receivables 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Trade receivables 73,609 158,741 
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (30,061) (23,000) 

43,548 135,741 

Other receivables 28,071 20,764 
Goods and services tax receivable 81,567 131,142 
Research and development grant receivable - 1,323,705

153,186 1,611,352 

Impairment of receivables 
The Group has recognised a loss of $18,351 (2016: $31,283) in profit or loss in respect of impairment of receivables for the 
year ended 30 June 2017. 

The ageing of the impaired receivables provided for above are as follows: 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

0 to 3 months overdue 1,691 13,449 
3 to 6 months overdue 3,382 9,551 
Over 6 months overdue 24,988 - 

30,061 23,000 

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Opening balance 23,000 - 
Additional provisions recognised 18,351 31,283 
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (11,290) (8,283) 

Closing balance 30,061 23,000 

Past due but not impaired 
Customers with balances past due but without provision for impairment of receivables amount to $5,412 as at 30 June 
2017 ($nil as at 30 June 2016). 

The Group did not consider a credit risk on the aggregate balances after reviewing the credit terms of customers based on 
recent collection practices. 
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The ageing of the past due but not impaired receivables are as follows: 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
0 to 3 months overdue  2,537   -  
3 to 6 months overdue  2,875   -  
     
  5,412   -  

  
  
Note 11. Current assets - other 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Accrued revenue  1,239,026   -  
Prepayments  46,615   105,432  
     
  1,285,641   105,432  

  
  
Note 12. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Leasehold improvements - at cost  62,047   -  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (10,130) -  
  51,917   -  
     
Fixtures and fittings - at cost  2,482   -  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (969) -  
  1,513   -  
     
Computer equipment - at cost  61,214   58,764  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (43,634) (40,545) 
  17,580   18,219  
     
Office equipment - at cost  33,689   21,941  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (11,683) (7,900) 
  22,006   14,041  
     
  93,016   32,260  
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Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 
  
  Leasehold Fixtures and Computer  Office 
  improvements fittings equipment  equipment Total
  $ $ $  $ $
       
Balance at 1 July 2015  -  -  49,638   15,080   64,718  
Additions  -  -  9,333   12,058   21,391  
Disposals  -  -  (22,365)  (9,035) (31,400)
Exchange differences  -  -  (681)  (5) (686)
Depreciation expense  -  -  (17,706)  (4,057) (21,763)
           
Balance at 30 June 2016  -  -  18,219   14,041   32,260  
Additions  45,660   -  18,931   6,081   70,672  
Additions through business combinations   13,577   1,842   -  3,102   18,521  
Depreciation expense  (7,320) (329) (19,570)  (1,218) (28,437)
           
Balance at 30 June 2017  51,917   1,513   17,580   22,006   93,016  

  
  
Note 13. Current liabilities - trade and other payables 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Trade payables  253,837   557,950  
Other payables  159,923   205,856  
     
  413,760   763,806  

  
Refer to note 18 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
  
Note 14. Equity - contributed capital 
  
  2017  2016  2017  2016 
  Shares  Shares  $  $ 
         
Ordinary shares - fully paid  425,676,187   1,280,535   30,365,055   17,822,643  

  
The number of shares and dollar value represents the continuation of Search. Consequent to the group reorganisation, 
refer to note 2, the shares were converted into issued capital of Applabs and disclosed as if the conversion occurred on 1 
July 2016. 
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Movements in ordinary share capital 
  
Details  Date  Shares  $ 
       
Balance  1 July 2015  895,760   12,033,568  
Rights issue  20 August 2015  82,736   982,904  
Prepaid shares recognised in equity  30 June 2015  -  (370,525)
Issue of shares on acquisition of JobAdvisor  30 September 2015  27,125   322,245  
Rights issue  22 December 2015  51,874   1,027,624  
Rights issue  31 December 2015  29,353   581,483  
Rights issue  8 March 2016  16,756   331,936  
Rights issue  15 March 2016  176,931   3,505,003  
Less: Transaction costs    -  (591,595)
       
Balance  30 June 2016  1,280,535   17,822,643  
Shares for acquisition of Search Party Limited, deemed 
consideration (note 25) 

 
12 August 2016 

 
289,528,822  

 
4,955,052  

Shares issued under Initial Public Offer  12 August 2016  37,049,969   3,704,997  
Shares issued for facilitator services (note 30)  12 August 2016  10,000,000   1,000,000  
The Search Party Limited shares eliminated on completion of 
acquisition 

 
12 August 2016 

 
(1,280,535)

 
(500,000)

Shares in Search Party Group Limited on completion of acquisition  12 August 2016  50,561,754   - 
Repayment of loan funded shares  22 September 2016  -  20,378  
Shares issued on Bonus option issue  28 February 2017  10,470,128   1,047,013  
Shares issued on Bonus option issue  14 March 2017  28,065,514   2,806,551  
Less: Transaction costs    -  (491,579)
       
Balance  30 June 2017  425,676,187   30,365,055  

  
Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the Company in 
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the 
Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital. 
  
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each 
share shall have one vote. 
  
Capital risk management 
The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure to reduce 
the cost of capital. 
  
Capital is regarded as total equity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. Net debt is calculated 
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 
  
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
  
The Group would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was seen as value adding 
relative to the current Company's share price at the time of the investment. The Group is not actively pursuing additional 
investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing businesses in order to maximise synergies. 
  
The Group is subject to certain financing arrangements covenants and meeting these is given priority in all capital risk 
management decisions. There have been no events of default on the financing arrangements during the financial year. 
  
The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 30 June 2016 Annual Report. 
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Note 15. Equity - option reserve 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Option reserve  5,035,144   1,638,702  

  
Option reserve 
The reserve is used to recognise the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their 
remuneration, and other parties as part of their compensation for services. 
  
  
Note 16. Equity - foreign currency translation reserve 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Foreign currency translation reserve  100,713   (41,155) 

  
Foreign currency reserve 
The reserve is used to recognise exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign 
operations to Australian dollars. It is also used to recognise gains and losses on hedges of the net investments in foreign 
operations. 
  
  
Note 17. Equity - dividends 
  
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
  
  
Note 18. Financial instruments 
  
Financial risk management objectives 
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, price risk and 
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the 
Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain risk 
exposures. Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes, i.e. not as trading or other speculative instruments. The 
Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity 
analysis in the case of interest rate, foreign exchange and other price risks, ageing analysis for credit risk and beta analysis 
in respect of investment portfolios to determine market risk. 
  
Risk management is carried out by senior finance executives ('finance') under policies approved by the Board of Directors 
('the Board'). These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the Group and appropriate 
procedures, controls and risk limits. Finance identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks within the Group's operating 
units. Finance reports to the Board on a monthly basis. 
  
Market risk 
  
Foreign currency risk 
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign currency risk 
through foreign exchange rate fluctuations. 
  
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and 
cash flow forecasting. 
  
The Group is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk. 
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Interest rate risk 
The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the 
Group to interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.  

The Group is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Group. The Group has a strict code of credit, including obtaining agency credit information, confirming references and 
setting appropriate credit limits. The Group obtains guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for 
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The 
Group does not hold any collateral. 

The Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the Group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash 
equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by continuously 
monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

Remaining contractual maturities 
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities. The tables have 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the 
financial liabilities are required to be paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows disclosed as remaining 
contractual maturities and therefore these totals may differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position. 

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

 

1 year or less 
Between 1 

and 2 years
Between 2 

and 5 years Over 5 years

Remaining 
contractual 
maturities 

2017 % $  $ $ $ $ 

Non-derivatives 
Non-interest bearing 
Trade payables - 253,837 - - - 253,837 
Other payables - 159,923 - - - 159,923 
Total non-derivatives 413,760 - - - 413,760 

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

 

1 year or less 
Between 1 

and 2 years
Between 2 

and 5 years Over 5 years

Remaining 
contractual 
maturities 

2016 % $  $ $ $ $ 

Non-derivatives 
Non-interest bearing 
Trade payables - 557,950 - - - 557,950 
Other payables - 205,856 - - - 205,856 
Total non-derivatives 763,806 - - - 763,806 

The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than contractually disclosed 
above. 
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Note 19. Fair value measurement 
  
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are assumed to approximate their fair 
values due to their short-term nature. 
  
The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the remaining contractual maturities at the current market 
interest rate that is available for similar financial liabilities. 
  
  
Note 20. Remuneration of auditors 
  
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd, the 
auditor of the Company, and its network firms: 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Audit services - BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd     
Audit or review of the financial statements  40,000   10,000  
     
Other services - BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd     
Other services  24,324   -  
     
  64,324   10,000  

     
Other services - network firms (BDO Corporate Finance (WA) Pty Ltd)     
Due diligence  -   12,000  

  
  
Note 21. Contingent liabilities 
  
There were no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. 
  
  
Note 22. Commitments 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Lease commitments - operating     
Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:     
Within one year  206,977   38,217  
One to five years  -   100,851  
More than five years  -   3,481  
     
  206,977   142,549  

  
Operating lease commitments includes contracted amounts for various retail outlets, warehouses, offices and plant and 
equipment under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one year with, in some cases, options to extend. The 
leases have various escalation clauses. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. 
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Note 23. Related party transactions 
  
Parent entity 
Search Party Group Ltd is the parent entity. 
  
Subsidiaries 
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 27. 
  
Key management personnel 
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 24 and the remuneration report included in the 
directors' report. 
  
Transactions with related parties 
The following employee share ownership plan transactions occurred with related parties: 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Options granted to key management personnel:     
- Stuart Paul Gatenby  -   18,503,728  
- Benjamin Randell Hutt  -   23,500,999  
     
Performance rights granted to key management personnel:     
- Trevor Loewensohn  200,000   -  
- Benjamin Hutt  5,409,224   -  
- Paul Bird  400,000   -  
- Nicholas Gundry  800,000   -  
- Stuart Gatenby  2,163,689   -  
- Jason Shepherd  2,596,427   -  
  
Refer to note 30 'Share-based payments' for details of the ESOP options and performance rights plans. 
  
Other transactions 
Sovereign Gold Company Limited, a company associated with Directors Patrick Glovac, Rocco Tassone and Charles 
Thomas entered into a sublease for the offices of the Company for $3,000 per month plus outgoings until 29 November 
2017. 
  
Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. 
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Note 24. Key management personnel disclosures 
  
Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the Group is set out 
below: 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Short-term employee benefits  958,689   514,230  
Post-employment benefits  85,242   55,716  
Share-based payments  30,499   -  
     
  1,074,430   569,946  

 
The prior year comparatives reflect the remuneration of key management personnel for the accounting parent only (The 
Search Party Ltd). Please refer to the remuneration report disclosed in the directors' report which includes remuneration of 
key management personnel for the legal parent (Applabs Technologies Ltd). 
  
  
Note 25. Acquisition accounting and listing expense 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Assets and liabilities acquired:     
Cash and cash equivalents  1,617,378   -  
Trade and other receivables  104,622   -  
Other assets  977,298   -  
Property, plant and equipment  18,521   -  
Intangibles  3,333   -  
Trade and other payables  (7,686) -  
     
Net assets acquired  2,713,466   -  

  
The table above represent the assets and liabilities of Applabs that was acquired on its acquisition by Search. Refer to note 
2 for further details. The cost of the acquisition based on the notional amount of shares that Search needed to issue to 
affect the transaction, at fair value amounted to $4,955,052. The difference between the deemed cost of $4,955,052 and 
the net assets acquired of $2,713,466, being $2,241,585 has been expensed as a listing expense in profit or loss. 
  
  2017  2016 
     
Deemed Search Party Group Ltd Share Capital     
Historical issued capital balance at 30 June 2016  25,554,925   -  
Search Party Group Ltd share capital at acquisition date  25,554,925   -  
Elimination of Search Party Group Ltd issued capital  (25,554,925) -  
Deemed Cost  4,955,052   -  
     
Total Search Party Group Ltd share capital on completion of transaction  4,955,052   -  
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  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Search Party Group Ltd Accumulated Losses Pre-Takeover     
Historical accumulated losses at 30 June 2016  (22,578,568) -  
Loss incurred from 1 July 2016 to 17 August 2016  (280,358) -  
Search Party Group Ltd accumulated losses at acquisition date  (22,858,926) -  
Elimination of Search Party Group Ltd accumulated losses  22,858,926   -  
     
  -   -  

  
  
Note 26. Parent entity information 
  
Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity. 
  
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
  
  Parent 
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Loss after income tax  (14,237,679) (1,657,418) 
     
Total comprehensive loss  (14,237,679) (1,698,333) 
  
Statement of financial position 
  
  Parent 
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Total current assets  100,464   5,869,720  
     
Total assets  116,341   6,923,601  
     
Total current liabilities  112,263   3,929,777  
     
Total liabilities  112,263   3,929,777  
     
Equity     

Contributed capital  12,604,037   25,554,925  
Option reserve  1,637,720   347,119  
Financial asset reserve  -   (329,652) 
Accumulated losses  (14,237,679) (22,578,568) 

     
Total equity  4,078   2,993,824  

  
Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries 
The parent entity had no guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. 
  
Contingent liabilities 
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. 
  
Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment 
The parent entity had no capital commitments for property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. 
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Significant accounting policies 
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the Group, as disclosed in note 3, except for the 
following: 
● Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity.
● Investments in associates are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity.
● Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised as other income by the parent entity and its receipt may be an

indicator of an impairment of the investment.

Note 27. Interests in subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in 
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3: 

Ownership interest 
 Principal place of business / 2017 2016 

Name  Country of incorporation % % 

The Search Party Ltd  Australia 100.00% 100.00% 
Search Party Services Pty Ltd  Australia 100.00% 100.00% 
Search Party Holdings Pty Ltd  Australia 100.00% 100.00% 
The Search Party Ltd  United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00% 
Search Party Services Ltd  United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00% 
JobAdvisor (UK) Limited *  United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00% 
The Search Party Ltd  Canada 100.00% 100.00% 
Search Party Services Ltd  Canada 100.00% 100.00% 
The Search Party US, Inc **  United States of America - 100.00%
The Search Party Services US, Inc **  United States of America - 100.00%

* Subsidiaries remained dormant during the year therefore no financial information has been included in the financial 
statements.

** Subsidiaries were dissolved on 21 June 2017.

Note 28. Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

Loss after income tax expense for the year (15,358,145) (7,545,991) 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 31,770 21,763 
Impairment of investments 107,520 - 
Write off of investments 82,820 - 
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (9,602) 31,400 
Share-based payments 4,396,442 1,007,245 
Foreign exchange differences 141,868 - 
Research and development grant 1,323,705 - 

Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
Increase in trade and other receivables (976,126) (137,292) 
Increase in income tax refund due - (209,297)
Increase in trade and other payables 2,021,478 43,414

Net cash used in operating activities (8,238,270) (6,788,758) 
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Note 29. Earnings per share 
  
  2017  2016 
  $  $ 
     
Loss after income tax attributable to the owners of Search Party Group Ltd  (15,358,145) (7,545,991) 

  
  Number  Number 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share  387,963,886   365,024,240  
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share  387,963,886   365,024,240  

  
  Cents  Cents 
     
Basic earnings per share  (3.96) (2.07) 
Diluted earnings per share  (3.96) (2.07) 
  
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the comparative period has been adjusted to give effect to 
reorganisation which occurred during the financial year. 
  
Options and preference rights are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-
dilutive. These options could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future. 
  
  
Note 30. Share-based payments 
  
  30 Jun 2017  30 Jun 2016 
  $  $ 
     
Share-based payments expense     
Loan funded shares issued by Search Party - vested on acquisition  214,865   -  
ESOP issued by Search Party - vested on acquisition  1,543,856   -  
ESOP issued by Search Party - modification to loan funded shares in Search Party Group  218,348   -  
Search Party Group Advisor Options - issued under prospectus  2,510   -  
Search Party Group Facilitator Options - issued under prospectus  1,057,970   -  
Search Party Private Treaty Options - issued under prospectus  2,894   -  
Search Party ESOP Options - issued under prospectus  334,639   -  
Search Party Facilitator Shares - issued under prospectus  1,000,000   -  
Search Party Performance rights - issued under prospectus  21,360   -  
     
  4,396,442   -  

 
Options 
  
Advisor and placement options 
The Adviser options were offered to the brokers/advisors who provided corporate advisory services to the Group. The 
Placement options were given to placees as free attaching options to 2 February 2016 and 4 February 2016 placements. 
  
Facilitator options 
The Facilitator options were offered to the Facilitators in consideration for the provision of facilitation services as part of the 
reverse acquisition. 
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Employee share option plan 
A share option plan has been established by the Group and approved by shareholders at a general meeting, whereby the 
Group may, at the discretion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, grant options over ordinary shares in the 
Company to certain staff or consultants of the Group. The options are issued for nil consideration and are granted in 
accordance with performance guidelines established by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
  
The Company has issued employee share option plan ('ESOP') options as employee incentives pursuant to the terms of 
the Company's ESOP. 
  
ESOP options were issued for nil consideration with an exercise price of $0.10 per option. 
  
ESOP Option are exerciseable at $0.10 each and are subject to the following vesting conditions: 
- 1/3 of the options vesting 12 months after the relisting date of ALA, and 
- 1/24 of the options vesting at the end of months 13 to 36 post relisting of ALA. 
  
ESOP options expire 5 years after the grant date. 
  
Private treaty options 
Private treaty options were offered as consideration for the acquisition of Private treaty options that a third party investor 
held in The Search Party Ltd. 
  
Set out below are summaries of options granted: 
  
2017           
     Balance at    Expired/  Balance at 
    Exercise  the start of    forfeited/ the end of 
Grant date  Expiry date  price the year  Granted Exercised  other the year 
           
Advisor and placement options:            
18/08/2016  31/12/2016  $0.25   -  2,000,000   -  (2,000,000) -  
               
Facilitator options:             
18/08/2016  18/08/2018  $0.15   -  30,000,000   -  -  30,000,000  
               
ESOP options:             
18/08/2016  18/08/2021  $0.10   -  4,954,463   -  -  4,954,463  
               
Private treaty options:             
18/08/2016  10/07/2022  $1.08   -  91,918   -  -  91,918  
      -  37,046,381   -  (2,000,000) 35,046,381  
  
Weighted average exercise price  $0.00  $0.16   $0.00  $0.25   $0.15  
  
2016 
There were no issues of equivalent options during the year ended 30 June 2016. 
 
Set out below are the options exercisable at the end of the financial year: 
  
    2017 2016 
Grant date  Expiry date  Number Number 
      
18/08/2016  18/08/2018  30,000,000   - 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021  -   - 
18/08/2016  10/07/2022  91,918   - 
       
    30,091,918   - 

  
The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the financial year was 1.57 years. 
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Valuation model inputs 

Options 
For the options granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair value at the 
grant date, are as follows: 

Share price Exercise  Expected Dividend Risk-free Fair value 
Grant date  Expiry date at grant date price  volatility yield interest rate at grant date 

18/08/2016  31/12/2016 $0.10 $0.25 85.00% - 1.85% $0.001 
18/08/2016  18/08/2018 $0.10 $0.15 85.00% - 1.85% $0.035 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.10 $0.10 85.00% - 2.04% $0.068 
18/08/2016  10/07/2022 $0.10 $1.08 85.00% - 2.04% $0.031 

Performance rights 

The Company has developed a performance rights plan ('PRP') which incorporates performance conditions and was 
effective from 18 August 2016. 

The PRP provides for awards of performance rights to senior management, vesting in 1/6 tranches over a five year period. 
The vesting is based on the following performance conditions: 

Revenue Tranche (subject to a 20 day volume weighted average price ('VWAP') being above $0.10), net monthly revenue 
of the Group: 
- $0.5 million
- $1.0 million
- $1.5 million

Share Price Tranche: 
- $0.3333
- $0.4080
- $0.6666

If the target is satisfied the performance rights will vest, but may lapse if an employee ceases employment with the 
Company. 

Set out below are summaries of performance rights granted under the plan: 

2017 
Balance at  Expired/  Balance at 
the start of  forfeited/ the end of 

Grant date  Expiry date the year Granted Exercised   other the year

18/08/2016  18/08/2021 - 15,313,088 - (6,386,208) 8,926,880 
- 15,313,088 - (6,386,208) 8,926,880 

The weighted average remaining contractual life of performance rights outstanding at the end of the financial year was 4.14 
years. 
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Valuation model inputs 

Performance rights 
For the performance rights granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair 
value at the grant date, are as follows: 

Share price Expected Risk-free Fair value 
Grant date  Expiry date Number Number  at grant date volatility interest rate at grant date 

18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.041 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.041 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.041 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.005 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.003 
18/08/2016  18/08/2021 $0.00 $0.00 0.06% 35.00% 1.55% $0.001 

* This fair value ignores the probability factor applied to these three tranches.

Employee options modified to loan funded shares 
In October 2015 the Company issued ESOP options under the Employee Share Option Plan of The Search Party Ltd. 
These options carried an expiry of 7 years from date of issue and would vest over 3 years or immediately in the case of a 
listing. The options vested immediately prior to the acquisition and were exercised by the holders. All holders took up the 
option to fund the exercise of shares. The exercise of the options was funded by a limited recourse loan over the shares 
and has been treated as a modification to the original terms of the ESOP options. 

As a result of the above, the remaining expense of the original ESOP options ($1,758,721) was expensed and the 
additional value in the modification ($218,348) recognised immediately. 

To determine the additional value of the modified terms the share based payment was valued on the modification date 
based on the original terms and on the new terms. These valuations have been set out below: 

Share price Exercise Expected  Risk-free Fair value
Grant date  Expiry date Number at grant date price volatility  interest rate at grant date

Valuation under original terms: 
18/08/2016  01/10/2021 206,892 $15.848 $11.880 85.00% 2.73% $11.602 

Valuation under modified terms: 
18/08/2016  18/08/2023 40,985,305 $0.080 $0.060 85.00% 2.89% $0.064 

Note 31. Events after the reporting period 

In August 2017, the Company commenced the process of liquidating two of its wholly-owned UK subsidiaries being The 
Search Party Ltd and Search Party Services Ltd. 

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2017 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect 
the Group's operations, the results of those operations, or the Group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
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In the directors' opinion: 

● the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the 
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

● the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 3 to the financial statements;

● the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June
2017 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

● there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 
and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. 

On behalf of the directors 

___________________________ 
Trevor Loewensohn 
Chairman 

30 August 2017 
Sydney 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Search Party Group Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Search Party Group Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries 

(the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement 

of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 

to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the directors’ 

declaration. 

In our opinion the accompanying financial report of the Group, is in accordance with the Corporations 

Act 2001, including:  

(i) Giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its

financial performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial 

Report section of our report.  We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations 

Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s 

APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial report in Australia.  We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the Code. 

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been 

given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the 

time of this auditor’s report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion.  

Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial report which describes the events and/or conditions which 

give rise to the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the group’s 

ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the group may be unable to realise its assets and 

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter.  
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Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial report of the current period.  These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 

a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty 

related to going concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report. 

Accounting for Reverse Acquisition 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

As disclosed in Note 2, 4 and 25 of the financial 

report, during the year Applabs Technologies Ltd 

acquired 100% of the share capital of the Search 

Party Ltd for a consideration of 289,528,822 

shares to the original shareholders of Search 

Party Ltd. This resulted in Search Party Ltd 

holding the majority shares in Applabs 

Technologies Ltd after the transaction. 

The accounting of this acquisition is a key audit 

matter due to the effect of the arrangement 

which is accounted for as Search Party Ltd (the 

accounting parent) issuing a share-based payment 

in return for the assets acquired in the company 

and a listing status. Furthermore, judgement is 

involved in the determination of the value of the 

purchase consideration settled by way of a share-

based payment (please refer to Note 4). 

Our procedures included, but were not limited 

to: 

• Holding discussions with management as to

the background of the transaction;

• Evaluating management’s assessment of the

accounting acquirer and whether the

transaction constituted a business or an

asset acquisition by checking against post

acquisition shareholding structure and our

knowledge of the operations of the legal

subsidiaries;

• Evaluating the basis of valuation of the share-

based payment against market capitalisation of

company;

• Checking the calculation of the share-based

payment, net assets acquired and listing

expense; and

• Checking that the disclosures in the

financial report were in accordance with

the basis of preparation as disclosed in note

2 for the reverse acquisition.

We also assessed the adequacy of the related 

disclosures in Note 2, 4 and 25 to the financial 

report. 
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Accounting for Share-Based Payments 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Search Party Group Ltd awarded share-based 

payments, in the form of shares, share options 

and performance rights in the current year to 

directors, management, employees and advisors 

as detailed in Note 30. The Group performed 

calculations to record the related share-based 

payment expense in the consolidated statement 

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

The Group uses assumptions in respect of future 

market and economic conditions. Due to the 

complex and judgemental estimates used in 

determining the valuation of the share-based 

payments, we consider the Group’s calculation of 

share-based payment expense to be a key audit 

matter. 

Our audit procedures in respect of this area 

included but were not limited to the following: 

• Considering whether the Group used an

appropriate model in valuing the options

issued to directors, management

employees and advisors during the year;

• Involving valuation specialists to assess the

assumptions used in the Group’s

calculations being the share price of the

underlying equity, interest rate, volatility,

expected life and grant date;

• Assessing the vesting conditions attached

to the share-based payments; and

• Assessing the adequacy of disclosure in the

financial report, (please refer to Note 30).

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the 

information contained in the Directors report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include 

the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this 

auditor’s report, and the Annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date 

of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 

are required to communicate the matter to the directors and will request that it is corrected.  If it is 

not corrected, we will seek to have the matter appropriately brought to the attention of users for 

whom our report is prepared. 

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 

true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 

and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the 

financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the group to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the 

Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website (http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx) at:  

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf 

This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Report on the Remuneration Report 

Opinion on the Rmuneration Report 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 9 to 15 of the directors’ report for the 

year ended 30 June 2017. 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Search Party Group Limited, for the year ended 30 June 

2017, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  

Responsibilities 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 

Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with 

Australian Auditing Standards.  

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 

Dean Just 

Director 

Perth, 30 August 2017 
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Shareholder Information 
 

ASX Additional Information  
Additional information required by the ASX Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in 
this report is set out below. This information is effective as at 13 October 2017. 

 
Corporate Governance Statement 
The corporate governance statement is located on the Company’s website at the following URL 
https://www.searchparty.com/docs/corporate-governance-statement-20160929.pdf 
 
Statement of Issued Shares  
 
The total number of shareholders is 873. There are 425,676,187 ordinary fully paid shares listed 
on the Australian Securities Exchange.  The twenty largest shareholders hold 68.72% of issued 
capital. 
 
Substantial shareholders 
The number of substantial shareholders and their associates are set out below: 

Shareholders 
Number of 

shares 

AIMLI Pty Ltd ,The AIMLI A/C> 72,810,959 
TFLT Pty Ltd <The Loewensohn Family A/C> 51,938,280 
DM Capital Management Pty Ltd <McEvoy Family A/C 24,520,325 
  
Voting rights 

Ordinary Shares - On a show of hands, every member present at a meeting in person or by 
proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share shall have one vote. 

Performance Rights - No voting rights. 
Share Options – No voting rights 

 
On-Market Buyback 
There is no current on-market buyback. 
 
Distribution of equity security holders 
  

Holding 
Ordinary 
Shares 

Performance 
Rights 

Share Options 

1 - 1,000  179  - 
1,001 - 5,000  138  - 
5,001 - 10,000  71  - 
10,001 - 100,000  247  16 
100,000 and over  238 9 18 

Total 873 9 34 
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Shareholder Information - continued 
 
The number of shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares is 779. 
 
Securities exchange 
The Company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. 
 
Unquoted equity securities 
Performance Rights issued:        9,903,864 
Share Options issued:      35,046,381  
 

Escrow 
No of ordinary shares under holding lock: 132,059,504  
 
Twenty largest shareholders 
 Ordinary shares 

 
Number 

held 

% of 
issued 
shares 

AIMLI PTY LIMITED <THE AIMLI A/C> 72,810,959 17.10% 
TFLT PTY LTD <THE LOEWENSOHN FAMILY A/C> 51,938,280 12.20% 
DM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT PTY LTD <MCEVOY FAMILY A/C> 24,520,325 5.76% 
BENJAMIN RANDELL HUTT 19,573,865 4.60% 
STUART PAUL GATENBY 14,890,979 3.50% 
GRUZIN INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED <THE SMITH-GRUZIN 
FAMILY A/C> 14,722,990 3.46% 

TVCT PTY LTD 14,329,122 3.37% 
JOSEPH NOMINEES PTY LTD <RAYNESFORD SUPER FUND A/C> 11,910,366 2.80% 
GROUP # 889629 8,669,834 2.04% 
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 8,669,834 2.04% 
CARTHONA CAPITAL FS PTY LTD <CARTHONA SPECIAL A/C> 8,337,434 1.96% 
MR JONATHON BARRY MILLER 8,106,647 1.90% 
CTHULHU VENTURES LLC 7,663,498 1.80% 
MR JOHN ANASSIS 6,499,043 1.53% 
DM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT PTY LTD <MCEVOY FAMILY A/C> 4,800,000 1.13% 
VORMUNDE PTY LTD <THE WOMBERRY ACCOUNT> 4,350,000 1.02% 
GARDINER BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PTY LTD <THE GARDINER 
FAMILY A/C> 4,256,574 1.00% 

BAOWIN INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 4,145,744 0.97% 
BENJAMIN RANDELL HUTT 3,927,134 0.92% 
STUART PUAL GATENBY 3,612,749 0.85% 
MR PASKO MILOS 3,455,826 0.81% 

Search Party Group Limited 2017 Annual Report Page 56

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Blank Page 

Search Party Group Limited 2017 Annual Report Page 57

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Corporate Directory 
 
 

Directors Trevor Loewensohn - Chairman  
 Josh Rogers 

Nicholas Gundry 
 
Company Secretary Patrick Raper  
 
Registered office and principal place of business 

74 Campbell Street  
Surry Hills NSW 2010  
Tel: +61 2 8001 6294 

 
Share register Advance Share Registry Services  
 110 Stirling Highway 

Nedlands WA 6009 
Tel: +61 8 9389 8033 
Fax: +61 8 9262 3723 

 
Auditor BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd  
 38 Station Street 

Subiaco WA 6008 
 

Solicitors Corrs Chambers Westgarth  
 Level 17 

8-12 Chifley Square 
Sydney NSW 2000 

 
Stock exchange listing Search Party Group Ltd shares are listed on the Australian 

Securities Exchange (ASX code: SP1) 
 

Website www.searchparty.com 
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